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INFANT MORTALITY QUESTIONS & ANSWERS 
QUESTIONS ANSWERS 

Are all 2020-2021 county lead 
agencies presumed to be eligible 
applicants for this grant cycle? 

Previous lead agencies and new lead agencies are welcome to apply for this grant 
opportunity as the primary applicant.  

Primary applicants must represent a coordinated community-wide effort for the 
entire Ohio Equity Institute (OEI) county. Some OEI communities leverage a 
neutral party that does not have a financial interest in the outcome of the grant 
to help determine which organization should be the primary applicant and which 
community-based organizations’ projects will be included in the county’s 
application.  

If multiple applications from differing primary applicants are received for a single 
county, all applications from that county will be sent back to the primary 
applicants, and the primary applicants will be asked to work together to submit a 
revised single application. 

Ohio’s Managed Care Organizations (MCOs) are under no obligation to issue an 
award as a result of the Request for Applications (RFA) if, in the opinion of the 
MCOs, none of the applications (or parts thereof) are responsive to the objectives 
and needs of the funding opportunity. Ohio’s MCOs reserve the right not to select 
any application, should they decide not to proceed. 

Please also note: the Ohio Department of Health (ODH) OEI lead agency is not 
required to be the primary applicant for this grant opportunity. If the primary 
applicant for this grant opportunity is different from the entity funded through 
ODH’s OEI grants, the organizations are expected to collaborate and align 
resources.   

Is a government agency that is 
not a health department an 
eligible applicant? 

As stated in the RFA, eligible lead applicants must be domestic entities, including: 

• Community- or faith-based not-for-profit organizations; 

• Local health departments; 

• Public or private universities and colleges; or 

• Early care and learning entities. 

Primary applicants may not be owned by a health care system, network, or 
hospital.  
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Additional types of applicants other than those listed above can be reviewed on 
an individual basis. Please send an email to infantmortality@medicaid.ohio.gov if 
you would like to discuss an alternate type of organizatoin applying as the 
primary applicant.  

If a direct service is reimbursed 
by Medicaid (e.g. closing a 
Pathways HUB Pathway) are 
entities allowed to submit for 
funding not covered in that 
reimbursement (e.g. salary 
and/or overhead costs)? If so, 
what direct costs are allowable? 

Using two funding sources to pay for the delivery of a single service is not 
acceptable.  

Grant funds can be used to expand access to services, to pay for agency 
administrative costs not associated with direct services that are funded by other 
sources, and to fund direct services that are not funded by other sources. 

Please see pages 12 and 13 of the RFA for a list of allowable and unallowable 
costs.  

Is funding allowed for marketing 
and social media development 
to increase program attendance 
and for educational outreach? 

Please see pages 12 and 13 of the RFA for a list of allowable and unallowable 
costs. Applicants may choose to include marketing as part of other allowable 
direct costs within the category of materials, supplies, and equipment purchased 
for use directly related to interventions and women served through funded 
programs.   

Please note, total funding for other allowable direct costs must not exceed 10% of 
total funding.  

Is there a maximum percentage 
of funding allowed to be 
allocated toward services 
related to social determinants of 
health (e.g. housing, 
transportation, etc.? 

See pages 12 and 13 of the RFA for a listing of allowable costs.  All applicants must 
include at least one of the required interventions. The proposal’s use of the 
remaining funding may be allocated to:  

• Additoinal community-based interventions, which may adress social 
determinents of health, and 

• Other allowable costs, which cannot exceed 10% of the total funding 
amount. 

Grant funding cannot be used to pay for services overwise covered by Medicaid 
and the managed care plans. For example, non-emergency transportation is a 
covered Medicaid service and a managed care value-added service, and should 
not be funded through this grant opportunity. 

What does expand access to 
Help Me Grow (i.e., NFP) and the 
CHWs mean? If we are not 
adding workers (expanding 
capacity) are we still able to 
fund the existing CHWs/NFPs 
(Nurse home visitors)? 

Similar to group prenatal care and centering, on-going home visiting services are 
being funded through other state and federal funding streams.  This grant’s funds 
can be used to support start-up and expansion in any of the 4 models currently 
funded by ODH/ODM. 

• Families funded through the current Managed Care OEI infant mortality 
grant will transition to ODH/ODM Help Me Grow funding on July 1, 2022. 
The team at ODH can assist any agency with planning for that transition. 

• Communities are encouraged to build new home visiting capacity in OEI 
counties. 

• Funding should support the start-up costs for new or expanded capacity 
for an appropriate period of time (4 for 6 months for HFA, MBF, PAT and 
6-9 months for NFP) that it takes for operations to fully ramp-up. 

• For example: A partner agency funded by this grant opportunity wants 
grow capacity for NFP by adding nurses in July and again in January.  The 
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partner agency develops a budget to support the program for the ramp-
up period (6-9 months after hiring each set of new nurses), allocating 
which portion of the overall budget will be billable to Medicaid/ODH 
(billable home visit services) and what other amount of funding is needed 
to support the program’s growth (training, non-productive time while a 
new nurse is building their caseload, etc.) over the year.  This grant 
opportunity can be used to support the “other funding” portion of the 
program’s budget, within the allowable costs framework of this grant. 

Will there be funding for NFP 
under this grant? 
 

Yes – proposals to use funding for start up and expansion costs for Nurse Family 
Partnership home visiting services will be considered.  Please also see the 
response to the question above - on-going services are expected to be funded 
through ODM’s nurse home visiting service or ODH’s Fee for Service Agreement.  

Can programs that are already in 
place with the current funding 
cycle continue to be funded with 
this funding cycle?   Or is this 
next funding cycle only for 
increasing efforts, such as 
creating new positions? 

Yes, currently funded programs may also be funded through this new grant 
opportunity. OEI communities are responsible for identifying a primary applicant, 
and primary applicants are responsible for identifying, outreaching to, and 
engaging potential partner agencies to collaborate and develop a coordinated 
community-wide approach.   

As stated on page 4 of the RFA, funding opportunities for previously funded 
community-based organization partners should be considered based on program 
outcome(s) and data submission.  

Some OEI communities leverage a neutral party that does not have a financial 
interest in the outcome of the grant to help determine which organization should 
be the primary applicant and which community-based organizations’ projects will 
be included in the county’s application.  

The primary applicant is responsible for communicating with previously funded 
organizations from the county that are not included in the application for this 
new grant cycle. This communication must be sent prior to submission of this 
application for funding, and the communication must include the primary 
applicant’s reasoning for determining the partner organization is ineligible to 
participate in this cycle’s application. The primary applicant must submit copies of 
these communications with their application for funding. 

Will Centering be funded under 
this grant cycle? 

No. On 1/1/22, delivery of group pregnancy education became  a Medicaid-
billable service and therefore cannot be funded through this grant. ODH’s funding 
is being used to support start-up and expansion for Group Pregnancy Care. Please 
contact dana.mayer@odh.ohio.gov for more information about ODH’s funding 
opportunity.  

Is the ROP report the same 
report as NOP (Notification of 
Pregnancy)? 

Yes. The name of the form changed. The Report of Pregnancy (ROP) form is now 
the name of the form that can be used to document pregnancy and other 
conditions related to pregnancy.  The ROP can be submitted electronically via the 
Nurture Ohio platform to inform essential partners (managed care organizations, 
Medicaid eligibility systems, and others) of the pregnancy and the potential need 
to offer additional services.  

Will standard reporting forms be 
provided by the MCP, GRC and 
ODM? 

The MCOs and the Government Resource Center (GRC) will continue to provide 
the necessary forms for this project to the primary applicants. Awarded primary 
applicants are responsible for ensuring their partnering community-based 
organizations use these standardized forms.  
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What is the entity NurtureOhio? NurtureOhio is a web-based system that collects, stores and shares data for both 
the electronic Pregnancy Risk Assessment Form (PRAF 2.0) and the ROP forms. 
These forms are used to report a pregnancy and other factors about the 
pregnancy to a variety of system partners. Obstetric providers can submit the 
PRAF electronically via NurtureOhio. Non-obstetric providers, including awarded 
lead agencies, will be able to submit electronic ROPs in NurtureOhio. Awarded 
lead agencies will also be responsible for submitting ROPs on behalf of their 
partnering agencies when they identify women with Medicaid coverage are 
pregnant, provided the partnering agency does not have access to NurtureOhio. 

On page 5 it lists under 
supervision for the expansion of 
community health worker 
programs. Can you please 
describe what under supervision 
means? 

Community Health Workers (CHWs) practicing under supervision have a 
structured relationship with a more experienced staff member who provides the 
CHW with support and opportunities for learning and ongoing feedback.  
Supervision improves quality and consistency of services across CHWs delivering 
care and works to improve overall program outcomes.  

For example, the Moms and Babies First home visiting model require CHWs to 
receive supervision on a weekly basis to review cases, plans of care, and planned 
interventions. CHW supervisors become qualified to supervise by receiving 
upfront and ongoing training beyond that required of a CHW. 

Applicants proposing to fund supervised CHW interventions that are part of an 
evidence-based or evidence-informed model of care should document their 
supervisory practices as part of the application.  

Please contact infantmortality@medicaid.ohio.gov with any questions pertaining to the Infant Mortality RFA.  
Additionally, click here to access the Infant Mortality RFA and all associated documents. 
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